
 

 
 

Polk County Conservation Board Meeting – March 11, 2015 

 
March 11, 2015 - 5:30 p.m. 
 
Po lk  County Admin i s t ra t ion  B ldg.  
111  Cour t  Avenue,  Room 120 
Des  Moines,  IA  50309  
 

AGENDA  
 

1) Opening Items 
a) Roll Call 
b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

2) Public Comments 
3) Employee Introduction 
4) Consent Agenda Items 

Note:  These are routine items and will be enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless a Board Member, PCCB 
employee or member of the public requests an item be removed to be considered separately.  Please notify a PCCB Member to 
have an item removed. 

a) Action on Bill List:  approve the PCCB February 2015 bill list.  
b) Public Hearing:  Transfer of Property to City of Ankeny: direct staff to advertise for a public hearing to be 

held at the April PCCB Board meeting on the transfer of trail right-of-way property to the City of Ankeny located from Hwy. 69 
through Oralabor Road to the south end of the Ankeny Corporate limits. 

c) Jester Park Golf Course Restrooms: approves reimbursement from Green Golf Partners in the amount of 
 $15,453.28 rather than the $31,500.38 as originally approved in June 2014 towards the cost of the two Gunnison unisex vault 
 toilets on the Jester Park Golf Course. 
d) Purchase:  Vehicle:  approve the purchase of a 2016 Ford Fusion Hybrid car from Charles Gabus Ford for a price not to 

exceed $25,368.64.  Payment made from Reserve Funds. 
e) Easter Lake Park, Grant - Covered Bridge Sediment Basin:  restate their support for the Easter Lake 
 Sediment Basin project and confirm the $152,000 PCWLL matching monies is pledged toward this project and, if necessary, 
 toward subsequent grant applications, regardless of the grantor. 
f) Position Modifications:  approves the position modifications of converting the four part-time positions identified above 

to full-time in order to better meet operational demands, effective July 1, 2015,  and directs the Accountant to take the 
necessary steps to implement this action. 

g) Ackelson Trail, Phase 3 - Culvert Purchase: 
 

5) Environmental Education Annual Report 
6) Jester Park Conservation Center / Easter Lake Lodge Discussion 
7) Bond Projects Update 
8) Naming Practices 
9) Great Western Trail Extension to Bill Riley Trail 
10) Land Acquisition 
11) Employees, Recent Hires 
12) Closed Session, Land Acquisition 

  

1



 

 
 

Polk County Conservation Board Meeting – March 11, 2015 

 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS  
DIRECTOR'S REMARKS 
BOARD CHAIR AND MEMBERS' REMARKS 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The information identified on this agenda may be obtained in accessible formats by qualified persons with a disability. To receive 
information or to request an accommodation to participate in a meeting, hearing, service, program or activity conducted by this office, 
contact the Polk County Conservation Board Office, 11407 NW Jester Park Drive, Granger, 515-323-5300. 

2



1) Opening Items 
 

a) Roll Call 
 

b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 
 

The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on February 11, 2015.  Minutes for the 
meeting are attached. 
 

2) Public Comments 
 
3) Employee Introduction 
  
4) Consent Agenda Items 
 

a) Action on the Bill List 
 
February 2015 expenditures have been e-mailed to the Board for review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the PCCB February 2015 bill list. 
 
 

b) Public Hearing: Transfer of Property to City of Ankeny 
 
The acquisition of the Ankeny Industrial Lead formerly owned by the Union Pacific has been 
more complicated than the standard acquisition of property.  The raising of the funding to 
acquire the land and the numerous partners involved has been, at times, confusing. 
 
The property stretches from the Ankeny AMP site near the center of the City in a southeasterly 
route across Ankeny Blvd., Oralabor Road, past Carney Marsh and to the south side of I-80.  
The property is to be an extension of the High Trestle Trail.   Former Director Parker had 
committed to the City of Ankeny that all of the ROW within the City would be transferred to 
City ownership.  PCC had transferred the section between the AMP site and Hwy 69 (Ankeny 
Blvd.) late last year shortly following the purchase from the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation.  
However,  the length promised by us includes the portion from Hwy 69 through Oralabor Road 
to the south end of the Ankeny Corporate limits. 
 
To fulfill our obligations to the City of Ankeny,  we need to transfer the ownership of the above 
real estate to the City of Ankeny and to do so we will need to advertise, hold a public hearing 
and then request that the Supervisors do the same in order to accomplish the transfer the 
property to Ankeny. 
 
      - Loren Lown, Parks & Nat. Areas Plng Adm. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board direct staff to advertise for a public hearing to be 
held at the April PCCB Board meeting on the transfer of trail right-of-way property to the City 
of Ankeny located from Hwy. 69 through Oralabor Road to the south end of the Ankeny 
Corporate limits. 

 
 
c) Jester Park Golf Course Restrooms 

 
At the June 2014 meeting the Board approved the replacement of the restrooms on the Jester 
Park Golf Course with two Gunnison unisex vault toilets (CXTs) at a cost of $72,378.08. 
 

3



At that time it was presented by former Director Dennis Parker that Green Golf Partners (GGP) 
would reimburse PCCB $31,500.38 toward the cost of the two Gunnison unisex vault toilets.  
Director Richard Leopold has had discussions with Tom Rodems, COO Green Golf Partners, 
and Tom's understanding was that they would pay for only $15,453.28, which would finish out 
GGP's contract obligation for capital improvements of $800,000.   
 
Director Richard Leopold agreed with this logic. The Board is being asked to modify its previous 
action on this item to say that Green Golf Partners would reimburse the PCCB $15,453.28 
toward the cost of the two Gunnison unisex vault toilets for the Jester Park Golf Course rather 
than the $31,500.38 originally approved. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approves reimbursement from Green Golf Partners 
in the amount of $15,453.28 rather than the $31,500.38 as originally approved in June 2014 
towards the cost of the two Gunnison unisex vault toilets on the Jester Park Golf Course. 
 
 

d) Purchase:  Vehicle 
 

The topic of hybrid and electric vehicles was a part of the FY 2014-15 Vehicle and Equipment 
Replacement Schedule discussion.  It has been a standing policy that 5%-10% of our vehicle 
fleet be in the form of a hybrid or electric vehicle. Currently we are at 3.83% which is two 
vehicles. We would like this number to be higher to stay within our policies and to maintain a 
conservation image at the same time.   
 
Staff researched the purchase of these vehicles from the current State of Iowa contracts with 
the Department of Administrative Services,  Department of Transportation and Iowa Regents. 
The following vehicle was found on the DAS contract and meets our specifications. 
 

1. (1) 2015  Ford Fusion Hybrid car              $24,868.64 
          vendor ( Charles Gabus Ford ) 
                               
Contingency for vehicle adds or changes:    $     500.00

 

                                                                                                                                                  
             $25,368.64 

The order for this vehicle will be placed upon Board approval. Ordering the vehicle at this time 
will allow us to get a 2016 model for a 2015 cost. Monies will be taken out of the Enterprise  
Fund from the FY 2014-15 budget. 
 
        - George Lentz, Eqpt. Maint. Supt.  
                                  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approve the purchase of a 2016 Ford Fusion Hybrid 
car from Charles Gabus Ford for a price not to exceed $25,368.64 with monies coming from 
Enterprise Funds. 

 
 
e) Easter Lake Park, Grant - Covered Bridge Sediment Basin 
 

The Board is familiar with this project.  We entered a proposal to receive grant support for this 
project under the Water Quality Initiative offered by IDALS.  The grant did not advance under 
the restrictive requirements of that program.  Copy of proposal attached. 
 
The project was well designed and essential for the future health of Easter Lake.  The Polk Soil 
and Water Conservation District felt it was of importance and asked to include it in the 
summer 2015 funding request for Watershed Protection Funds (WSPF).  The Easter Lake 

4



Coordinator indicates that if this request is not funded or only partially funded they will 
continue to seek funding under subsequent WSPF funding and 319 funding. 
 
We are returning for confirmation from the Board, that should we be awarded funding of 
$100,000 toward the construction of the basin, that PCCB will provide the matching funding of 
$152,000 as stated in the original grant request. 
 
      - Loren Lown, Parks & Nat. Areas Plng Adm. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board restate their support for the Easter Lake Sediment 
Basin project and confirm the $152,000 PCWLL matching monies is pledged toward this project 
and, if necessary, toward subsequent grant applications, regardless of the grantor. 

 
 
f) Position Modifications 
 

The PCCB has been working with Polk County to convert four (4) part-time positions (32 or 
more hours per week) to full-time in order to better meet operational demands.  Staff has 
been working with Polk County Human Resources (HR) who confirmed this action doesn't need 
to be approved by resolution of the Board of Supervisors as no additional budget dollars are 
being requested.  Following are the four (4) part-time positions to be modified. 
 

• Convert one (1) part-time (1,736 hours) Accounting Clerk position, excluded grade 11, 
range $39,550-$51,786 to full-time. 

• Convert one (1) part-time (2,028 hours) Mechanic position, excluded grade 17, range 
$52,164-$68,542 to full-time. 

• Convert one (1) part-time (1,664 hours) Natural Resource Worker position, excluded 
grade 11, range $39,550-$51,786 to full-time. 

• Convert one (1) part-time (500 hours) Riding Instructor position, excluded grade 6, 
range $31,521-$41,131 to full-time.  

 
These modifications would become effective July 1, 2015.  The additional dollars needed, 
approximately $30,000, will be reallocated from other areas of the existing FY15/16 budget as 
identified by discussion with the unit managers.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approves the position modifications of converting 
the four part-time positions identified above to full-time in order to better meet operational 
demands, effective July 1, 2015,  and directs the Accountant to take the necessary steps to 
implement this action. 

 
 
g) Ackelson Trail, Phase 3 - Culvert Purchase 
 

Staff has been working with the Wastewater Reclamation Authority (WRA) to allow installation 
of a new truck sewer line on the eastern "shore" of Easter Lake within park boundaries. 
 
Our agreement with the WRA includes provisions that require them to create a roughly graded 
trail bed that will reduce the work required to build phase 3 when it the actual trail is built in 
2017. 
 
The length of future trail between Easter Lake Drive and Payton Avenue is low and wet with 
several small feeder streams entering the lake at that point.  One of these streams is larger 
than the others, and the former landowner had installed two 24" culverts across the stream to 

5



allow access.  The WRA is installing their sewer beneath that crossing and within the terms of 
our agreement will replace the two culverts with two new 24" pipes. 
 
Staff wants to replace those pipes with one large 48" culvert to match the upstream pipe sizing 
and avoid the sedimentation and overtopping problems that are apparent with the old 
construction. 
 
The WRA is willing to replace the pipe with like size and length pipe but if we request additional 
capacity and length they would like PCC to assume the additional cost of doing so. 
 
The contractor for the WRA has quoted a change order of $11,237.56 to go with the larger 
piping.  The WRA has requested that if we desire the change, it is their preference that we pay 
the amount directly to the contractor. 
 
      - Loren Lown, Parks & Nat. Areas Plng Adm. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approves the new culvert to be a 48" diameter pipe 
in lieu of the two 24" pipes that currently exists; and approves paying the difference in cost of 
$11,237.56 out of PCWLL monies. 
 

 
5) Environmental Education Annual Report 
 

The Environmental Education Staff has produced their second annual report. Staff will be present 
to do a short presentation, discuss the report in more detail and answer questions.  Report 
attached. 
 
Information only. 

 
 
6) Jester Park Conservation Center / Easter Lake Lodge Discussion 
 

Discussion will occur on the Jester Park Conservation Center and the Easter Lake Lodge.  
Attached is a Memo prepared by Director Leopold regarding this discussion. 

 
 
7) Bond Projects Update 
 

It is time to reflect on what we have accomplished thus far and look forward to where we are 
going. We now have an understanding of capacity within each of the categories of PCWLL 
spending, how much we have spent thus far, current projects underway, and remaining 
capacity. Staff have been working with Shive Hattery in capturing this story in a way we can 
engage the PCCB in active discussion of future spending. 

 
 
8) Naming Practices 
 

With the acquisition of additional properties, we need to have a general discussion of naming 
practices within PCCB. This discussion includes park names, water bodies, trails, campgrounds, 
buildings, etc. 

 
 
9) Great Western Trail Extension to Bill Riley Trail 
 

The Board granted permission to staff to contract with Snyder and Associates for a feasibility 
study that would define the work required and the cost of extending the Great Western Trail 

6



(GWT) from the current trailhead south of George Flagg Parkway, near the Izaak Walton League, 
eastward to 30th Street. 
 
That study is completed and a copy is attached.  Snyder and Associates have presented an 
opinion of probable cost and detailed the process recommended to extend the trail.  There are 
three options presented for consideration.  These options vary in scope and cost.  I will describe 
them from lowest cost to highest. 
 

1) An 8' wide granular trail with concrete paving only where the new granular trail 
connects to the existing Bill Riley Trail at 30th St.  $180,000.00 
2) An 8' wide granular trail with 340' of 10' wide concrete paving on the steep eastern end 
where the slope rises to meet the existing trail.  $193,000.00 
3) a 10' wide concrete trail the entire length. $$367,400.00 

 
All discussions with the City of Des Moines, who own a portion of the old rail bed , and Water 
Works Park, who owns the property on both sides of the proposed trail, have been based on the 
trail as a "temporary"  granular trail that can be relocated if and when the Veteran's Parkway is 
extended into the central city.  Option #2 meets these expectations; and the paving at the 
eastern end will prevent erosion problems from developing and meets all ADA requirements. 
 
Staff has asked Snyder to prepare a contract proposal that will include the development of plans 
and specifications, bidding documents,  and costs of inspection/staking/construction 
management necessary to bid and construct the GWT Extension this spring/summer. That 
agreement falls within common rates for this type of work.  The total cost for all services is $31,400 
and is attached. 
 
The preliminary site investigation has been done and the project could be ready to bid and 
constructed this season.  Staff requests permission to publish notice of a public hearing at the 
April Board meeting and to return to the May meeting with bid results and recommendation for 
award to construct the Great Western Trail Extension.   
 

      - Loren Lown, Parks & Nat. Areas Plng Adm. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approves Option #2 (an 8' wide granular trail with 340' 
of 10' wide concrete paving on the steep eastern end where the slope rises to meet the existing 
trail) for extending the Great Western Trail at a cost not to exceed $193,000; authorizes the Chair 
to enter into a contract with Snyder and Associates for  design, bidding, and construction 
services for  the Great Western Trail extension at a cost not to exceed $31,400; and further directs 
staff to advertise for a public hearing to be held at the Board's April 2015 meeting on the plans 
and specifications, cost estimate, etc. for this project with potential award of contract at the 
Board's May 2015 meeting. 
 

 
10) Land Acquisition 
 

At The February Board meeting the Board instructed staff to make an offer to the Priest family of 
appraised value of $315,000 to acquire the property at 4290 SE 76th Street, Runnells, IA, consisting 
of a home and outbuildings on approximately18.8 acres of land.  Map attached. 
 
The offer was tended and accepted.  Staff returns to the Board with an offer to buy signed by 
the landowner.  
 

7



Upon signature by the Chair staff will deliver a signed copy of the agreement to the landowner 
with a check of $5,000 as earnest money and begin the process of closing and acquiring the 
property. 
 

      - Loren Lown, Parks & Nat. Areas Plng Adm. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board authorize the Chair to sign the Offer to Buy and directs 
staff to proceed with acquisition of the property at 4290 SE 76th Street, Runnells, Iowa, in the 
amount of $315,000 which will be paid for with PCWLL funds. 
 

 
11) Employees, Recent Hires 
 

The following individual(s) have been hired for employment with PCCB: 
 

Start 
Date Employee Position 

 
Rate of Pay 

2/17/15 Melody Cline Clerk, Eq. Ctr. $10.08/Hr 
2/21/15 Theresa Brauer Clerk, Eq. Ctr. $10.08/Hr 

3/2/15 Travis Maak 
Natural Resources 
Tech. 

Grade 14, 
Entry Step 

 
Information only. 
 
 

12) Closed Session, Land Acquisition 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
DIRECTOR'S REMARKS 
 
BOARD CHAIR AND MEMBERS' REMARKS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

8



Polk County Conservation Board 
Polk County Admin. Bldg. 

Room 120 
Des Moines, IA 

 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD 
 

The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on Wednesday, 
February 11, 2015.  The meeting was called to order at 5:33 p.m. 
 
 

 
#1a – Roll Call 

Members Present: Johnson, Smith, Cataldo, Northway, Levis 
 
 

 
#1b – Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

MOTION:  Moved by Levis to approve the January 14, 2015 meeting minutes as written. 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Cataldo, Johnson, Smith, Northway 
 
 

 
#2 – Public Comments 

Chris Barry, 4749 NE 48th Court, 50317, appeared before the Board about the 
Rendezvous event held at Chichaqua every year. 
 
 

 
#3 – Consent Agenda Items 

MOTION:  Moved by Cataldo to approve moving item 3F) Easter Lake Restoration 
Project Manager to the regular agenda; and approve the remaining consent 
agenda items: 

 a) PCCB January 2015 bill list; 
 b) PCCB Bylaws; 
 c) modifying policy to identify employees working 30 or more hours a week 

for more than a six month period to be benefits eligible from 24 or more 
hours/week/annually, effective immediately; 

 d) authorizing staff to contract with Russell Joe Patterson to farm the 9.8 
acres of the former Miller-Rist property for one (1) year and authorize the 
Interim Director to sign said contract with Russell Joe Patterson; 

 e) acknowledging receipt of the proposed rate changes at the Jester Park 
Golf Course from Green Golf Partners for the 2015 golfing season and 
acknowledge that the proposed prices are in conformance with pricing 
guidelines established by the Board 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Northway, Johnson, Cataldo 

9



Board Meeting:  February 11, 2015            2 
 
 

 
#3f – Easter Lake Restoration Project Manager 

MOTION: Moved by Levis to approve the Independent Contract Agreement with Mike 
McGhee for a not to exceed amount of $42,000 for his role as project 
manager of the Easter Lake Restoration Project.  Funding will be provided by 
the PCWLL Funds 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Northway, Johnson, Levis, Smith 
 VOTE NAY:  Cataldo 
 

 
#4 – Jester Park Conservation Center Project Manager 

MOTION: Moved by Smith to approve the Professional Services Contract with Mark 
Stevens for a not to exceed amount of $90,000 for his role as project 
manager of the Jester Park Conservation Center Project.  Funding will be 
provided by the PCWLL Funds 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson 
 VOTE NAY:  Cataldo, Northway 
 
 

 
#5 – Yellow Banks Park Planning & Design 

Penny Thompson, Birch Blvd, Pleasant Hill, steward at Yellow Banks and a member of 
Polk County Conservation Advisory Board, appeared before the Board about Yellow 
Banks Park. 
 
Johnson asked that staff arrange for contractors to be present at meetings when 
contracts are approved. 
 
MOTION: Moved by Cataldo to approve Professional Services Agreement with Shive-

Hattery for Yellow Banks Park Planning & Design for an amount not to 
exceed $126,800 and authorize the Chair to sign the Agreement. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Smith, Northway, Johnson, Cataldo, Levis 
 
 

 
#6 – Election of Officer, Secretary 

Levis nominated Jim Cataldo as Secretary to the Board for 2015. 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Levis to accept the nomination of Jim Cataldo to serve as 

Secretary for 2015. 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Johnson, Northway, Smith, Cataldo, Levis 
 

10



Board Meeting:  February 11, 2015            3 
 
 

 
#7 – Director’s Position 

MOTION:  Moved by Smith considering his performance as Interim Director, the Board 
1) appoint Richard Leopold as Polk County Conservation Director; 2) 
authorize the Chair and Vice Chair to negotiate an appropriate salary with 
Leopold; 3) appointment to Conservation Director be effective upon 
determination by the Chair that the salary negotiation has been successfully 
concluded; 4) that the salary increase be retroactive to the date Leopold 
assumed duties of Interim Director (August 21, 2014) and 5) the August date 
be his new annual review date. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Smith, Northway, Cataldo, Levis, Johnson 
 
 

 
#8 – Employees, Recent Hires 

Kelsey Freeman, newly hired Riding Instructor at the Jester Park Equestrian Center, 
was introduced to the Board. 
 
 

 
#9 – Closed Session, Land Acquisition 

MOTION:  Moved by Northway to go into closed session pursuant to Chapter 21.5 of 
the Iowa Code for the purpose of discussing the acquisition of real estate 
where public disclosure might adversely affect the price. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Cataldo, Johnson, Smith,, Levis, Northway   
 
Board returned to open session.  No action was taken. 
 
 

 
Financial Reports 

*Part-time 32 employees to full-time 
Director’s Remarks 

*Trails update 
*Parks Superintendent position update 
*Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt Master Plan process 
*Water quality planning/monitoring 
*Bond, charts, graphs, maps coming in future to assist with future decisions 
*Deputy director position update 
 

*Johnson - welcomed Richard Leopold on Board as Director 
Board Chair and Member’s Remarks 

*Cataldo –consolidating both assets, Easter Lake Lodge and Jester Park Conservation 
Center, in one. Leopold will bring history to next month's agenda. 

11



Board Meeting:  February 11, 2015            4 
 
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 
Adjournment 

 
Prepared by:  Cindy Lentz 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



13



14



15



16



17



 

Leading you Outdoors 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
EDUCATION 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2013-2014 

  
 
Staff: 
Patrice Petersen-Keys - Environmental Education Coordinator 
Heidi Anderson – Naturalist 
Joe Boyles – Naturalist 
Lori Foresman-Kirpes – Naturalist 
Lewis Major – Naturalist 
Rebekah Beall – Seasonal Naturalist  
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



YEAR AT A GLANCE 
 

 
From July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, the environmental education staff  

connected with various audiences for a total of 41,907 hours. 
 

 Programs Participants Hours of 
Programming 

Contact Hours 

School 1,150 22,454 365 27,235 
Family 82 3,242 88 774 

Adult 63 2,251 284 7,875 
Youth 248 5,775 150 4,681 
Camps 5 59 114 1,342 

Totals 1,548 33,781 1,003 41,907 

  

 

66% 

10% 

7% 

17% 

33,781 Total Program Participants 

School - 22,454 

Family - 3,242 

Adult - 2,251 

Youth - 5,775 

Contact hours are figured by adding 

together the amount of time each 

individual spends with a naturalist 

Example: If a two hour program has 

10 participants, the contact hours  

equal 20.  

More contact hours provide a 

higher impact. More time with 

program participants has greater 

value than having more 

participants. 

 

"The staff is very 
knowledgeable and gives 

great information. They have 
a lot of patience and make 

things easy for fourth 
graders to understand." - 
Fourth grade teacher at 
Olmstead Elementary, 

Urbandale. 

 
 

West Des Moines students have fun 

exploring Engeldinger Marsh.  

19



SCHOOL PROGRAMS 
 

 
School programs are a major focus of the environmental education unit. We continue to work to align our 
classroom presentations and field trips with Iowa Core Science Standards. This allows teachers to justify a field 
trip experience. Classroom programs and field trips help students meet learning objectives while having fun. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

2609 

4261 4112 

2487 
2740 

1706 

400 

2114 

375 

900 750 

0 

500 

1000 

1500 

2000 

2500 

3000 

3500 

4000 

4500 

Number of Students by Grade 

“Other” includes home school groups and schools outside Polk County 

 

50 

0 
10 

146 

33 
16 

2 

28 
4 

22 21 

46 
56 

33 

0 

218 

119 

30 
18 

39 

0 

61 57 

145 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

Presentations by School District 
All ten districts are represented 

Indoor  

Outdoor 

20



7 

16 

23 

9 
7 

13 

5 

11 

0 

8 8 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

Number of Field Trips by Grade 

SCHOOL FIELD TRIPS 
 

 
A total of 107 field trips, involving 682 programs and 7,685 students, were conducted during the 2013/14 
school year. With some schools have difficulty with bus funding, the Great Outdoors Foundation provides a 
limited number of school bus scholarships. During the past year, 16 buses were funded allowing almost 1,000 
students to experience Polk County Parks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

When asked,  "What did you like best about 
your PCC program" one teacher 4th grade 
teacher commented: "Everything! We gain so 
much knowledge and it is such a wonderful 
way to actually see what we are learning! I 
refer to this field trip all year long back in the 
classroom! It is awesome!" 

 

 

Jordan Creek students canoeing the oxbows at  
Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt 

Students enjoy catching critters while on 

an Insect-themed field trip to Jester Park. 

21



PUBLIC PROGRAMS 
 

 
 

Family programs  

 Presented eleven Nature’s Story Hour and Nature 

 Playdates in various PCC parks 

 Co-sponsored Nature Friends, a parent/child program, 

 with West Des Moines Park and Recreation and 

 Des Moines Izaak Walton League 

 Twenty youth became "Junior Naturalists" by 

 attending multiple programs and doing 

 independent nature activities  

 Programs during spring and winter break are popular 

 when families are spending time together 

 
 
 Youth programs 

 Five, week-long summer camps connect youth to the 
outdoors through hands-on learning activities and 
adventures 

 A day-long survival skills spring break camp teaches fire 
building, archery, and geocaching  

 Eight "summer skill" programs helped engage 10-16 year 
olds in fun physical activities like canoeing, kayaking and 
geocaching. 

 
 
 
Adult programs 

 Conducted Polk County Master Conservationist program. This 32-hour course introduces adults to Iowa 
conservation and natural resource issues. 

 Continued growth of OWLS (Older Wiser Livelier Seniors) monthly 
 program, average attendance is 80 people. 

 Conducted seven eco-bus tours, for a total of 294 participants 

 Led two outdoor skill paddling adventure trips. One on the  
St. Croix River in MN and the other on the Niobrara River in NE. 

 Began "Book Worms" a monthly environmental book club. 

 Hosted weekly music in the park at the Jester Park Amphitheater 
 from Memorial to Labor Day. 

 

 

Jr. Naturalist Summer Camp Participants 

Bus trip participants enjoyed their visit to 

Madison County. 

 

An average of 50 people attend Nature's Story Hour 

Jewell of the Prairie Bus Trip participants took 

a pontoon ride at Rock Creek State Park. 
22



Habitat discovery booth at the Iowa Outdoor Expo. 

 

PUBLIC PROGRAMS 
 

 
Special Events 
2,124 people attended special events. These events often involve partnerships and have multiple programs 
taking place at one time. Event partners are in parentheses.  

 Discover Chichaqua at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt 

 Iowa Outdoor Expo at Des Moines Izaak Walton League (Iowa DNR and Des Moines Izaak Walton 
League) 

 Youth Waterfowl Fun Day at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt (Iowa DNR and Ducks Unlimited) 

 Walk for Wildlife at Jester Park (Greater Des Moines Volkssport Association) 

 Do More Outdoors at Thomas Mitchell and Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt (Unity Point Health – Des 
Moines) 

 Urbandale Snow Day at Lions Park (City of Urbandale) 

 Bald Eagle Watch at Jester Park/Saylorville Lake (Army Corps of Engineers – Saylorville Lake, Iowa DNR 
and Dallas CCB) 

 Easter Lake Watershed Kickoff at Easter Lake Park (Polk Soil and Water Conservation District) 

 Senior Fishing Derby at Easter Lake Park (Polk County Senior Services) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2474 

1740 

93 

Public Programs 
Attendance - 4,307 

Family 

Adult 

Youth 

 

Visitors enjoy looking for eagles at the 
 Bald Eagle Watch. 

23



ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 
Social Media  
Social media is an easy and effective way to connect to the public. The data below reflects the ever increasing 
number of methods and users. 

 Twitter followers - 262 

 Facebook followers – 1,445 

 Pinterest followers - 179 

 E-Newsletter subscribers – 7,763 

 YouTube total views – 2,367 

 Blog, average monthly read - 679 

 Guide by Cell, prompts dialed – 2,872 

 Guide by Cell, new dialers – 1,673 

 QR (Quick Response) code views - 199  
 

 
Special Projects 

 Maintain and update 56 Guide by Cell messages and 12 QR codes 

 Provide 11 Park Packs for free check out to families and youth groups 

 Write bi-monthly Ask the Naturalist news columns in the Bull’s Eye Newspaper and Polk County Senior 

Bulletin 

 Jester Park Natural Playscape and Elk/Bison Education Plaza maintenance 

 Jester Park bird blind maintenance 

 Produce Nature News three times a year and mailed to 6,500 recipients 

 Jester Park Conservation Center fundraising and interpretive display planning 

 

Grants Received 
 Received $20,170 for a Resource Enhancement 

and Protect/Conservation Education Program 
(REAP/CEP) grant titled “Discover Your Watershed”. The 
grant ranked first out of eleven other grants. It was 
praised by the review board for the great partnerships, 
working with high school students and for the place 
based education. 

 Received $103,436 for a Land and Water 
Conservation Fund Act  (LAWCON) grant to develop 
newly donated Fort Des Moines property into an 
outdoor classroom. New features will include, prairie 
planting, walking trails, wildlife viewing stations, and  

       shelter. 

 

 

 
Example of QR code, scan to see 

video of Jester Park Osprey. 

 

Lincoln High School students learning about water quality 

while spreading compost at Easter Lake Park. 

 
24



 

ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 
Outreach  

 12 ICN (Iowa Communications Network) presentations viewed by 1,025 students across the state 

 Orienteering and survival presentations at OJ 
(Outdoor Journey) for Girls. This program 
introduces 12-15 year old girls to outdoor skills 

  Bat presentation at “Mysteries of the Castle” at the 
Salisbury House, a family friendly day filled with 
education and fun 

 Iowa State University “Taking the Road Less 
Traveled” on careers in conservation sponsored by 
the Women in Science and Engineering 

 Presented programs to eight local libraries assisting  
with their reading programs 

 Provided programming opportunities to local civic 
and professional organizations 

 Epic Iowa Road Trip sponsored by the Iowa Tourism and the Department of Economic Development -
visited Jester Park and toured the Elk/Bison Exhibit and the new Cabins. The group also traveled via 
horse drawn wagon to the High Trestle Trail Bridge.  Polk County Conservation was part of a select 
group to be included in the tour throughout the state of Iowa 

 
Media Relations 

 Promoted Do More Outdoors event at Chichaqua on Great Day KCWI-TV 

 Interview with Van and Bonnie from WHO-Radio and KCCI-TV about recreational activities at Jester 
Park 

 The Des Moines Register featured a story on the Owl Prowl public program in February and periodic 
cicadas in June 

 Interview with IPTV - Iowa Outdoors and WHO-TV about the periodic cicadas 

 Promoted the Jester Park cabin grand opening on WOI-TV 

 Edited four television commercials promoting outdoor recreation. This was a joint promotional 
campaign with Mills Fleet and Farm 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The nine-day Epic Iowa Road Trip showcased more than 60 

destinations while traveling nearly 2,100 miles 

25



 
 
 
 
 
 
Memo: Polk County Conservation Center and Easter Lake Lodge 
 
To: Polk County Conservation Board, Polk County Board of Supervisors 
 
From: Richard Leopold, Director, Polk County Conservation Board 
 
March 3, 2015 
 
 
There has been some discussion concerning the location of the planned Jester Park 
Conservation Center. Some have proposed that since there is planning underway to 
establish and “event and community center” at Easter Lake Park, perhaps there could be 
efficiencies by combining the two efforts. While on the surface there appears to be some 
efficiencies and merit to this proposal, upon further consideration there are many 
challenges. This point of view asserts that $4M of the Polk County Water and Land 
Legacy bond funding allocated to the Jester Park site could be directed to the Easter Lake 
Park site and that there may be overlap and limited capacity of the donor base to support 
two projects in the Des Moines area. 
 
To better describe the situation of the Jester Park Conservation Center and its planning, 
here are some useful considerations to objectively examine some of the current and 
historic efforts underway.  
 

• The Jester Park Conservation Center Third Party Assessment of Probable Costs is 
approximately $11M. In addition to this figure, there has already been over 
$700,000 invested in with complete site plans, design, and engineering completed. 
This investment in design and engineering is site specific, and would not be 
transferable to the proposed lodge at Easter Lake Park. 

• The Easter Lake Lodge is in preliminary design, with early costs estimates 
somewhere between $6M and $8M. There has been no site plan, final design, or 
engineering to date. 

• The Jester Park Conservation Center is designed to headquarter Polk County 
Conservation offices, which is sorely needed. The Easter Lake Lodge is not 
currently designed for this use. This will add at least $2M to the cost. 

• The Jester Park Conservation Center is designed to facilitate environmental 
education, outdoor recreation, and natural resources interpretation. The Easter 
Lake Lodge is not currently designed for these uses. This will add at least $2M to 
the cost. 

• There is little opportunity for outdoor environmental education at the Easter Lake 
site. Jester Park was chosen in part because of its diverse habitats, such as prairie, 

 

26



forest, wetlands, streams, shallow ponds, and Saylorville Reservoir. Easter Lake 
is a beautiful urban park, but offers none of these habitats. Although it is possible 
to “recreate” these habitats, it is very expensive (Easter Lake is a former coal 
mine with the slag from refining making up the surrounding landscape.)  

• There has been a great deal of investment at Jester Park already in anticipation of 
the Conservation Center, such as pond improvements (complete with boardwalk 
and boat ramp), the Nature Playscape, the live bison and elk exhibits, four modern 
cabins, a new entrance road, and an extensive ADA accessible trail network. 

• Easter Lake Park is going through its own wonderful metamorphosis. With 
partners, Polk County Conservation is building a lake perimeter paved trail 
($6M), lake restoration ($12-$15M), and updated facilities, shoreline work, beach 
concession, etc. These upgrades and amenities, along with a proposed Easter Lake 
Lodge, puts improvements at well over $25M. 

• Jester Park Conservation Center currently has three contracts in progress, under 
approval and authority of the Polk County Conservation Board. These include a 
professional feasibility study to determine the fundraising potential of the project, 
interpretive design and display construction, and project coordination. Together, 
these contracts total over $500,000. 

• Currently, the Jester Park Conservation Center is the grateful recipient of a Vision 
Iowa Community Attraction and Tourism grant for $970,000. If the site is 
changed, this grant goes away, it is non-transferable. 

• Polk County Conservation, through major donors, city contributions, corporate 
gifts, and foundation grants, has generated over $1.25M. Almost certainly, the 
vast majority of this fundraising goes away and is non-transferable. 

• Planning for the Jester Park Conservation Center pre-dates and was subsequently 
concurrent with the campaign for the Polk County Water and Land Legacy bond. 
A change of location would surely have public repercussions. 

• Polk County Conservation is currently going through a detailed feasibility study. 
This study will give confidence and a firm plan forward to raise the remainder of 
the needed funds. It is believed that the donor base for this facility will be 
distanced, both in time, location, and interest, from other efforts underway in our 
community, including Water Works Park and the Easter Lake Lodge. The 
feasibility study, to be completed in May, will report on its findings. 

• My opinion – I believe the efforts of the Easter Lake Lodge committee have made 
a good start and are ready for the next steps. The Polk County Board of 
Supervisors had historically committed $250,000 to this project, $50,000 of which 
has been used to generate the preliminary design. Polk County Conservation has 
committed $400,000 of Polk County Water and Land Legacy funding to the 
project (along with millions in funding to the trail and lake restoration projects.) I 
realize this is likely less that 10% of needed funding for the Easter Lake Lodge, 
although it is a great base to fund its own feasibility study and contract for 
professional fundraising. They have a vibrant and engaged committee and 
community supporting this project, and who very much want a chance to prove 
they can handle a project of this magnitude. I would be inclined to let them see 
what they can do. 

27



2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FEASIBILITY STUDY 

GREAT WESTERN TRAIL EXTENSION 

DES MOINES, IOWA 

 

POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION 

PROJECT #: 115.0081 

 

February 9, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 
 

2727 SW Snyder Blvd. 

Ankeny, Iowa 50023 

(515) 964-2020 

 

28



Feasibility Study – Great Western Trail Extension Page i 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. PROJECT BACKGROUND ........................................................................................ 1 
2. TRAIL DESIGN STANDARDS .................................................................................. 4 
3. SITE CONDITIONS ..................................................................................................... 5 
4. CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................... 20 

 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 – Project Area Overview .................................................................................................. 1 
Figure 2 – Property Ownership (trail alignment shown for planning purposes only) ................... 2 
Figure 3 – Planned SW Connector Route within the City of Des Moines ...................................... 3 
Figure 4 – American Discovery Trail, Segment 4 Plan Sheet (12-18-2007) .................................. 7 
 

PHOTOS 

Photo 1 - Great Western Trail facing east toward railroad corridor............................................. 5 
Photo 2 - East end of corridor facing east toward SW 30th Street, ramp slope is 4.9%. ............... 6 
Photo 3 - East end of corridor, facing south from existing Bill Riley Trail. .................................. 8 
Photo 4 - Vegetation along the west end of the corridor. ............................................................... 9 
Photo 5 - Vegetation along the west end of the corridor. ............................................................. 10 
Photo 6 - A larger tree along the corridor. .................................................................................. 10 
Photo 7 - South side of stone and concrete culvert. ...................................................................... 11 
Photo 8 - North side of stone and concrete culvert. ..................................................................... 11 
Photo 9 - Culvert on south side of rail bed. .................................................................................. 12 
Photo 10 - Culvert on north side of rail bed. ................................................................................ 12 
Photo 11 - South side of large double culvert near east end of the corridor.  The western culvert 

is blocked by debris. ...................................................................................................................... 13 
Photo 12 - North side of large double culvert near the east end of the corridor. ........................ 13 

Photo 13 - First drainage area that will require a new culvert.................................................... 14 
Photo 14 - Second drainage area that will require a new culvert. ............................................... 14 
Photo 15 - Flood damaged area on northern bank of rail bed. .................................................... 15 
Photo 16 - Flood damaged area on northern slope of rail bed. ................................................... 16 
Photo 17 - Eroded area exposing utility lines along the northern slope of the rail bed. ............. 16 
Photo 18 - Eroded area along the northern slope of the rail bed................................................. 17 
Photo 19 - Washed out area across the rail bed corridor. ........................................................... 17 

Photo 20 - Flattened area near middle of corridor. ..................................................................... 18 
Photo 21 - A remnant of the corridor's former use as a railroad. ................................................ 19 
Photo 22 - The eastern portion of the corridor may offer scenic views of adjacent wooded areas.

....................................................................................................................................................... 19 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A: Cost Opinion Information 

29



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 1 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

1.  PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The Great Western Trail, managed by Polk County Conservation, connects the cities of 

Martensdale, Cumming, and Des Moines, where there is a trailhead just south of Water Works 

Park and George Flagg Parkway.  The Bill Riley Trail, managed by the City of Des Moines, 

connects from Ashworth Park, through Water Works Park, to Gray’s Lake Park.  The two trails 

are approximately a mile apart, but do not have a direct trail connection between them.  Trail 

users must travel along Water Works Park roads to link between these two popular trails.  

George Flagg Parkway is subject to flooding, which often prohibits passage. 

   

 
Figure 1 – Project Area Overview 

There is a former railroad right of way just south of Water Works Park that creates a direct 

connection between the Great Western Trail and a portion of the Bill Riley Trail at Southwest 

30
th

 Street.  The 100-foot wide railroad right-of-way has been split with the northern 30-feet 

being owned by Polk County and the southern 70 feet being owned by the City of Des Moines.  

It is at a higher elevation than George Flagg Parkway and would be less vulnerable to flooding.  

The length of the corridor is slightly longer than one mile. 

30



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 2 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Figure 2 – Property Ownership (trail alignment shown for planning purposes only) 

This proposed trail segment is identified as a planned trail on the City of Des Moines Bicycle 

and Trail Master Plan, and is identified as regional trail system gap by the Des Moines Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (DMAMPO).   

 

This area is also part of the planned route for the SW Connector road project, which is a diagonal 

route connecting downtown Des Moines to Interstate 35 north of Cumming.  The project has 

been part of the DMAMPO’s long-range transportation plan since 1994.  Portions of this project 

have been constructed in the City of West Des Moines; however, no construction has been 

scheduled within the City of Des Moines.  A February 11, 2013 City of Des Moines Council 

Communication (No. 13-060) stated that, “Currently there are no funds in the existing City of 

Des Moines Capital Improvement Program for the extension of the SW Connector into Des 

Moines.  Future work on the SW Connector within Des Moines’ Corporate limits is not 

anticipated for at least 10 years.  Completion of the SE Connector to Highway 65 is our top street 

priority.  Therefore, we don’t expect construction of the SW Connector for many years.”  The 

map on the following page shows the proposed alignment of the SW Connector within the City 

of Des Moines.  The area of this proposed trail connection is circled.   

31



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 3 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Figure 3 – Planned SW Connector Route within the City of Des Moines 

The SW Connector is envisioned to follow the same rail corridor contemplated for this trail 

connection.  However, due to the lower priority placed on the SW Connector improvements in 

Des Moines, a trail connection could be useful for many years.  Careful design of the SW 

Connector could also incorporate the trail without removing it. 

 

Polk County Conservation requested a feasibility study of the route to build an 8-foot wide 

granular trail along the former railroad right-of-way.  Due to the significance of the connection to 

the overall Central Iowa Trail System, this feasibility study includes a cost opinion for 

development of a 10-foot-wide paved trail as well. 

  

Proposed trail connection along 

SW Connector planned route 

Source: City of Des Moines via the DMAMPO 

32



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 4 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

2.  TRAIL DESIGN STANDARDS 

Trails may be referred to as “shared use paths” due to their dual recreational and transportation 

purposes (whereas other types of “trails” may be a solely recreational facility).  Shared use path 

design guidance is provided by American Association of State Highway and Transportation 

Officials (AASHTO) Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities and The Iowa Statewide 

Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) Manual. The trail should also meet Americans with 

Disabilities Act, with guidelines provided through Public Right of Way Accessibility Guidelines 

(PROWAG). 

 

Trail width 

The SUDAS and AASHTO guides agree that a typical shared use path width is 10 feet to 

accommodate two-way bicycle traffic; however, widths can be reduced to 8 feet where bicycle 

traffic is expected to be low, pedestrian use is not expected, the alignment allows passing and 

resting opportunities, the path will not be subjected to maintenance loading conditions that would 

cause pavement edge damage, or there is a physical constraint for a short distance.  A 2-foot 

minimum shoulder is also required.   

 

This trail is envisioned as an 8-foot facility although use is anticipated to be high and pedestrian 

traffic is expected.  This extension fulfills an immediate need, but is considered temporary 

toward two possible permanent conditions, either extension of the SW Connector or permanent 

paving of the trail.   

 

Trail surface material 

SUDAS recommends that shared use paths in an independent right-of-way are paved, but allows 

for granular surfaces if they are firm, stable, and slip resistant.  PROWAG also requires surfaces 

that are firm, stable, and slip resistant. 

 

AASHTO states that hard, all-weather pavement surfaces are generally preferred over those of 

crushed aggregate.  Bicyclists may lose traction and bicyclists and other wheeled users must 

exert greater effort to travel at a given speed when compared to paved surface.  Some users, such 

as inline skaters, are unable to use unpaved paths. 

 

Unpaved pathways may be appropriate if the intended use is primarily recreational or if it is 

being used as temporary measure to open a path before funding is available for paving. 

 

The granular surface should be 6 inches thick with a gradation of 3/8 inch minus crushed 

limestone. 

 

Snyder and Associates, Inc. recommends that slopes longitudinal of 3% or more be paved.  

Steeper slopes will rapidly erode as rainwater sheds down the longitudinal slope faster than the 

2% cross slope.   

 

  

33



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 5 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

3.  SITE CONDITIONS 

As a former railroad right-of-way, the majority of the route is well-defined and suitable for a trail 

connection.  There are a few conditions to address in order to accommodate the trail.  The areas 

of interest include: the west end connection, east end connection, vegetation overgrowth, existing 

culverts, additional drainage crossings, flood and erosion damaged areas, and other 

miscellaneous items.  

 

West end connection 

Starting at the Great Western Trailhead on the west end of the corridor, the proposed trail will tie 

into the existing trail at the location shown below.  This is at the curve in the trail between 

George Flagg Parkway and the trailhead parking lot.  The proposed trail will continue to the east 

from this curve.  Intersection warning signage should be installed and vegetation should be 

cleared to ensure a sufficient sight triangle to avoid collisions.   

 

 
Photo 1 - Great Western Trail facing east toward railroad corridor. 

 

  

34



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 6 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

East end connection 

At the east end of the corridor, the trail will ramp up from the railroad corridor to the street 

elevation.  The City of Des Moines provided the plan sheet for the American Discovery Trail, 

Segment 4 (locally referred to as the Bill Riley Trail) which indicates that this ramp was 

designed for a future trail connection with a 4.9% slope, which is under the maximum of 5% 

established for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 

 
Photo 2 - East end of corridor facing east toward SW 30th Street, ramp slope is 4.9%. 

35



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 7 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Figure 4 – American Discovery Trail, Segment 4 Plan Sheet (12-18-2007) 

The proposed gravel surface trail may be subject to erosion along this steep slope.  Also, if the 

gravel is loose, it may be hazardous to trail users at higher speeds on the slope.  A bonding agent 

could be added to the surface to keep the rock in place, but paving this section is recommended.      

 

The paving should extend onto the flatter portion of the trail in order to give cyclists and other 

wheeled trail users time to adjust the speed and prepare to transition onto a gravel surface, with 

signage warning cyclists of the change in trail surface material.   One way to estimate the length 

of pavement necessary to prepare for this transition would be to calculate the distance necessary 

for a bicyclist to come to a stop.  Of course, the bicyclist does not need to come to a complete 

stop before transitioning onto the gravel portion of the trail, but they do need to slow enough to 

maintain control of the bicycle during the transition.   

 

The AASHTO Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities provides this formula for 

calculating stopping sight distance:   
  

         
       . 

Where:  

S = stopping sight distance 

V = velocity (mph) 

f = coefficient of friction (0.16 for a typical bike in wet conditions; 0.32 for dry conditions) 

G = grade (ft/ft) (rise/run) 

 

 

36



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 8 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

If we assume:  

V = 25 mph for a cyclist coming down the 4.9% slope 

f = .16 for wet conditions to ensure the safest design 

G = 0 for stopping on the flat portion of the trail 

then S = 225 feet of flat, paved trail recommended for a bicyclist to see the change in surface and 

come to a stop, if necessary. 

 

We propose paving the slope along with a section of trail out to the tree line in Carney Park.  

This would provide approximately 190 feet of flat, paved surface.  We also recommend that this 

section be 10-feet wide to better accommodate the different speeds of users that may be 

simultaneously using the trail.  This would also meet the future paving of the trail.     

 

At the top of the bank, the trail will tie into the existing Bill Riley Trail, which is a 10-foot wide, 

asphalt trail.  We recommend removing a section of the existing sidewalk and repaving a 

concrete connection at the top of the levee to create a better transition between the existing trail, 

the sidewalk, and the proposed trail extension. 

 
Photo 3 - East end of corridor, facing south from existing Bill Riley Trail. 

  

37



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 9 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Vegetation overgrowth 

Various types of vegetation have grown along the entire route of the corridor.  Much of the 

corridor along the western portion is overgrown with honeysuckle.  Most of the trees along the 

corridor are less than 6 inches caliper, but there are a few along the edges and embankments that 

are larger and will need removed to accommodate the trail and the required shoulders.  There are 

also several downed trees crossing the path that will need to be removed. 

 

 
Photo 4 - Vegetation along the west end of the corridor. 

38



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 10 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Photo 5 - Vegetation along the west end of the corridor. 

 
Photo 6 - A larger tree along the corridor. 

39



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 11 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Existing culverts 

There are three existing culverts along the corridor.  The westernmost is a stone and concrete 

culvert.  This culvert will need to be evaluated by a structural engineer to review the 

deterioration and determine if remedial measures are necessary. 

 
Photo 7 - South side of stone and concrete culvert. 

 
Photo 8 - North side of stone and concrete culvert. 

40



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 12 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Further east is a 24-inch VCP culvert.  The pipe appears functional, but clay pipe is susceptible 

to separation over time. 

 
Photo 9 - Culvert on south side of rail bed. 

 
Photo 10 - Culvert on north side of rail bed. 

41



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 13 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Near the east end of the corridor is a large, double culvert.  The western opening on the south 

side of the corridor is blocked by debris and will need to be cleaned out to allow storm water to 

pass through.  A sewer line runs parallel and south of the corridor and is exposed at this location. 

 
Photo 11 - South side of large double culvert near east end of the corridor.  The western culvert 

is blocked by debris. 

 
Photo 12 - North side of large double culvert near the east end of the corridor. 

42



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 14 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Additional drainage crossings 

There are two drainage crossings that will require new culverts to be installed to accommodate 

the trail. 

 
Photo 13 - First drainage area that will require a new culvert. 

 
Photo 14 - Second drainage area that will require a new culvert. 

43



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 15 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Flood and erosion damaged areas 
There are several large areas of major erosion along the route as well as a few smaller areas.  

These areas will need to be filled and stabilized.  These were likely damaged during flood events 

where the former railroad grade functioned as a dike or levee and was breached. 

 

 
Photo 15 - Flood damaged area on northern bank of rail bed. 

 

 

44



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 16 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Photo 16 - Flood damaged area on northern slope of rail bed. 

 
Photo 17 - Eroded area exposing utility lines along the northern slope of the rail bed. 

45



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 17 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Photo 18 - Eroded area along the northern slope of the rail bed. 

 
Photo 19 - Washed out area across the rail bed corridor. 

46



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 18 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

Miscellaneous items 

There is an area near the center of the route where the terrain flattens out and the existing 

railroad bed is no longer discernible possibly due to utility installation or other grading.  In this 

area, there is more flexibility with the location of the trail.  Also, this area will require the trail 

typical cross section, which includes ditches, to be constructed.  

 

 
Photo 20 - Flattened area near middle of corridor. 

The box shown in Photo 21 is a reminder of the corridor’s former use as a railroad.  It may be a 

future nuisance with the trail route and need to be removed.  Acknowledgement of this structure 

can be incorporated into the trail design, if desired. 

 

47



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 19 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

 
Photo 21 - A remnant of the corridor's former use as a railroad. 

 

 
Photo 22 - The eastern portion of the corridor may offer scenic views of adjacent wooded areas. 

48



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page 20 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

4.  CONCLUSION 

When planning for the development of this trail, the following points should be taken into 

consideration: 

 

 The project connects two significant trails in the Central Iowa System. 

 

 The project is consistent with adopted local and regional plans. 

 

 The project is in the same area as the proposed Southwest Connector road project; 

however, the City of Des Moines has not budgeted for development of the Southwest 

Connector at this time.   

 

 As a former railroad right-of-way, the majority of the route is well-defined and suitable 

for a trail connection. 

 

 Trail design guidelines recommend 10-foot wide paved trails, but 8-foot wide granular 

trails are allowed under certain conditions. 

 

Trail improvement options and construction costs: 

 

 The pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for an 8-foot wide granular trail, 

with pavement only at the top of the bank at the east end connection is $180,000.  This 

allows the minimum improvements necessary to create a trail connection, including two 

new culverts and potential rehab of the masonry culvert.  The cost opinion includes 

excavation of the railroad bed to create a 14-foot wide surface to accommodate a future 

10-foot wide trail with 2-foot shoulders.  See the cost opinion on page A-1. 

 

 The pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for a 10-foot wide paved trail is 

$367,400.  The additional cost is attributed to the PCC; all other costs are the same.  See 

the cost opinion on A-2. 

 

 The pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for an 8-foot wide granular trail 

with approximately 340 feet of 10-foot wide pavement (including the 4.9% sloped ramp 

and approximately 190 feet of flat pavement for cyclists to see the change in trail surface 

and slow down) at the east end is $193,000.  This is the recommended minimum amount 

of paving for maintenance of the steep slope and safety of the trail.  See the cost opinion 

on page A-3. 

 

 

49



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page A-1 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

APPENDIX A 

COST INFORMATION 

 

The following is a pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for an 8-foot wide, granular 

trail with concrete added only at the top of the bank on the east end connection. 

 

 
 

 

  

ITEM 

NUMBER
ITEM DESCRIPTION

UNIT OF 

MEASURE
TOTAL UNITS UNIT PRICE EXTENDED COST

1 COMBINED CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 1.5 10,000.00$          $             15,000.00 

2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 CY 3,224 10.00$               32,240.00$              

3 EMBANKMENT IN PLACE CY 275 15.00$               4,130.00$                

4 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 56 275.00$             15,400.00$              

5 PIPE CULVERT, TRENCHED, RCP, 24" LF 72.0 80.00$               5,760.00$                

6 PIPE APRON, RCP, 24" EA 4 1,200.00$          4,800.00$                

7 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 11 10.00$               110.00$                  

8 RECREATION TRAIL, PCC, 6" SY 58 38.00$               2,210.00$                

9 RIP RAP, CLASS E TON 50 50.00$               2,500.00$                

10 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF 80 3.00$                240.00$                  

11 RECREATIONAL TRAIL, GRANULAR TON 1,664 18.00$               29,960.00$              

12 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LS 1 7,500.00$          7,500.00$                

13 REHAB FOR MASONRY CULVERT LS 1 30,000.00$         30,000.00$              

149,850.00$          

20% ± 30,150.00$            

180,000.00$          

CONSTRUCTION SUB-TOTAL

CONTINGENCY (PRE-DESIGN)

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

PRE-DESIGN ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Great Western Trail Extension

Polk County

Snyder & Associates Project No. 115.0081

February 9, 2015

8-Foot Wide, Granular Trail

50



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page A-2 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

The following is a pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for a 10-foot wide, paved 

(PCC) trail for the entire route. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

ITEM 

NUMBER
ITEM DESCRIPTION

UNIT OF 

MEASURE
TOTAL UNITS UNIT PRICE EXTENDED COST

1 COMBINED CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 1.5 10,000.00$          $             15,000.00 

2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 CY 3224 10.00$               32,240.00$              

3 EMBANKMENT IN PLACE CY 275 15.00$               4,130.00$                

4 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 56.0 275.00$             15,400.00$              

5 PIPE CULVERT, TRENCHED, RCP, 24" LF 72 80.00$               5,760.00$                

6 PIPE APRON, RCP, 24" EA 4 1,200.00$          4,800.00$                

7 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 11 10.00$               110.00$                  

8 RECREATION TRAIL, PCC, 6" SY 4960 38.00$               188,480.00$            

9 RIP RAP, CLASS E TON 50 50.00$               2,500.00$                

10 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF 80 3.00$                240.00$                  

11 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LS 1 7,500.00$          7,500.00$                

12 REHAB FOR MASONRY CULVERT LS 1 30,000.00$         30,000.00$              

306,160.00$          

20% ± 61,240.00$            

367,400.00$          

CONTINGENCY (PRE-DESIGN)

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

PRE-DESIGN ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Great Western Trail Extension

Polk County

Snyder & Associates Project No. 115.0081

February 9, 2015

CONSTRUCTION SUB-TOTAL

10-Foot Wide, PCC Trail

51



Feasibility Study - Great Western Trail Extension Page A-3 
2015 – 115.0081\correspondence\reports   

The following is a pre-design opinion of probable construction costs for an 8-foot wide granular 

trail with approximately 340 feet of 10-foot wide PCC trail at the east end, which allows the 

4.9% sloped ramp and approximately 190 feet of flat area to be paved. 

 

 

ITEM 

NUMBER
ITEM DESCRIPTION

UNIT OF 

MEASURE
TOTAL UNITS UNIT PRICE EXTENDED COST

1 COMBINED CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 1.5 10,000.00$          $             15,000.00 

2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 CY 3,224 10.00$               32,240.00$              

3 EMBANKMENT IN PLACE CY 275 15.00$               4,130.00$                

4 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 56 275.00$             15,400.00$              

5 PIPE CULVERT, TRENCHED, RCP, 24" LF 72.0 80.00$               5,760.00$                

6 PIPE APRON, RCP, 24" EA 4 1,200.00$          4,800.00$                

7 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 11 10.00$               110.00$                  

8 RECREATION TRAIL, PCC, 6" SY 394 38.00$               14,980.00$              

9 RIP RAP, CLASS E TON 50 50.00$               2,500.00$                

10 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF 80 3.00$                240.00$                  

11 RECREATIONAL TRAIL, GRANULAR TON 1,574 18.00$               28,340.00$              

12 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY LS 1 7,500.00$          7,500.00$                

13 REHAB FOR MASONRY CULVERT LS 1 30,000.00$         30,000.00$              

161,000.00$          

20% ± 32,000.00$            

193,000.00$          

CONTINGENCY (PRE-DESIGN)

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

8-Foot Wide, Granular Trail & 10-Foot Wide, PCC Trail

PRE-DESIGN ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Great Western Trail Extension

Polk County

Snyder & Associates Project No. 115.0081

February 9, 2015

CONSTRUCTION SUB-TOTAL

52



53



54



55



56



¯
1,

20
0

Fe
et

18
.8

 a
cr

e 
P

rie
st

 P
ro

pe
rty

Al
itz

 P
ro

pe
rty

57



UNIT # UNIT
Revenue 
Budget

Total 
Revenues 
Received 

Balance 
Due

% 
Received

General - Fund 1
0212 Infrastructure -$                         -$                       -$                      0.0%
0213 Equipment 5,000$                 13,108$             (8,108)$             262.2%
6006 Environmental Ed 62,500$              12,845$             49,655$            20.6%
6009 Natural Resources 81,710$              27,129$             54,581$            33.2%
6101 Administration 180,600$            90,511$             90,089$            50.1%
6103 Community Outreach 250$                    250$                  -$                      0.0%
6104 Conservation Grants -$                         10,000$             (10,000)$           0.0%
6110 Parks Advocacy Unit 410,800$            252,079$           158,721$          61.4%
6119 Construction/Maint. -$                         99$                    (99)$                  0.0%
6124 Equestrian Center 315,000$            151,639$           163,361$          48.1%
Sub-Total - General Fund 1 1,055,860$        557,661$           498,199$          52.8%
REAP - Fund 26
0211 Resource Enhancement 156,400$           184,050$           (27,650)$           117.7%
Reserve - Fund 50
0210-0214 Special Projects -$                       -$                       -$                      0.0%
Bond - Fund 51
0210 Water & Land Dev & Trails 2,812,300$        1,619,347$        1,192,953$       57.6%
Conservation Enterprises - Fund 286
6121 Golf Course 214,400$           164,909$           49,491$            76.9%
6123 JP Cabins -$                       49,670$             (49,670)$           #DIV/0!
Sub-Total - Enterprises Fund 286 214,400$           214,579$           (179)$                100.1%
Grand Total - Conservation 4,238,960$   2,575,637$   1,663,323$  60.8%

2014- 2015 Revenue Budget
- as of 02/28/15 (66.67% of budget year expired)

58



UNIT # UNIT
Expense 
Budget

Total 
Expended

Balance 
Remaining

% 
Expended

General - Fund 1
0212 Infrastructure -$                           -$                       -$                          #DIV/0!
0213 Equipment 158,500$              161,650$            (3,150)$                 102.0%
6006 Environmental Ed 383,905$              263,773$            120,132$              68.7%
6009 Natural Resources 666,102$              440,987$            225,115$              66.2%
6101 Administration 1,069,439$          738,467$            330,972$              69.1%
6103 Community Outreach 215,955$              136,353$            79,602$                63.1%
6104 Conservation Grants -$                           51,012$              (51,012)$               #DIV/0!
6110 Parks Advocacy Unit 465,610$              275,264$            190,346$              59.1%
6119 Construction/Maint. 1,118,674$          802,528$            316,146$              71.7%
6124 Equestrian Center 416,851$              417,263$            (412)$                    100.1%
Sub-Total - General Fund 1 4,495,036$          3,287,297$         1,207,739$           73.1%
General Supplemental - Fund 2
All Units Benefits (IPERS/FICA/Ins, Etc.) 1,019,911$          651,414$            368,497$              63.9%
Risk Management - Fund 3
6100 Insurance,Med., Work. Comp. 96,300$               77,630$              18,670$                80.6%
REAP - Fund 26
0211 Resource Enhancement 147,856$             132,483$            15,373$                89.6%
Reserve - Fund 50
0210-0214 Trails, Special Projects 490,000$             25,942$              464,058$              5.3%
Bond - Fund 51
0210 Water & Land Dev & Trails 4,110,678$          4,796,392$         (685,714)$             116.7%
Conservation Enterprises - Fund 286
6121 Golf Course 292,000$             91,769$              200,231$              31.4%
6123 JP Cabins -$                        30,883$              (30,883)$               #DIV/0!
Sub-Total - Enterprises Fund 286 292,000$             122,651$            169,349$              42.0%
Grand Total - Conservation 10,651,781$  9,093,810$   1,557,971$      85.4%

2014- 2015 Expense Budget
- as of 02/28/15 (66.67% of budget year expired)

59



D
EC

EM
B

ER
JU

N
E

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L
A

C
TU

A
L

G
R

A
N

T
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L

SU
B

-
2

0
1

3
 B

O
N

D
2

0
1

5
 B

O
N

D
C

O
ST

S
C

O
ST

S
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

M
IS

C
EL

LA
N

EO
U

S
R

EV
EN

U
ES

 A
N

D
C

O
ST

S
B

A
LA

N
C

E

LE
D

G
ER

P
R

O
JE

C
T

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

D
O

N
A

TI
O

N
S

TO
 D

A
TE

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

C
0

5
-R

0
0

3
G

A
Y 

LE
A

 W
IL

SO
N

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 (
D

SM
-A

N
K

EN
Y)

5
0

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

8
7

,5
8

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

4
,6

4
4

$
   

   
   

   
7

6
0

,1
0

5
$

   
   

   
   

7
7

,0
3

2
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(7
8

7
,4

6
2

)
$

   
   

   
   

4
9

,6
7

6
$

   
   

   
  

9
2

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
0

6
-6

1
3

4
C

B
G

 S
H

A
W

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

4
3

0
,9

1
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

9
1

,6
3

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
(2

5
8

,8
6

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
4

3
2

,7
7

6
$

   
   

   
(1

,8
6

1
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
0

8
-6

1
4

2
JE

ST
ER

 P
A

R
K

 C
A

B
IN

S 
6

8
7

,8
9

4
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
8

7
,7

5
9

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
8

7
,7

5
9

$
   

   
   

1
3

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
1

1
-6

2
0

5
C

V
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
-B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y 
TO

 B
O

N
D

U
R

A
N

T
3

6
,8

1
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
1

,9
3

5
,7

6
9

$
   

   
  

1
7

4
,0

9
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

,4
9

9
,7

6
7

$
   

   
  

1
1

8
,8

4
3

$
   

   
   

   
2

0
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(7

5
7

,6
7

1
)

$
   

   
   

   
8

6
1

,1
4

9
$

   
   

   
4

7
5

,6
6

9
$

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
1

3
C

B
G

 W
EL

L 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T

7
3

,8
5

9
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

1
,7

4
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

1
,7

4
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

,9
6

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

3
,8

5
9

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
1

4
C

B
G

 O
B

SE
R

V
A

TI
O

N
 D

EC
K

8
3

,8
4

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

4
,5

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8

5
,7

8
5

$
   

   
   

  
(1

,9
4

1
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
1

8
JP

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

B
LD

G
 R

EL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
4

5
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

5
,0

3
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

5
,0

3
6

$
   

   
   

4
4

,9
6

4
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
1

9
EC

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

1
0

,6
7

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,5
5

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,1

1
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

0
,6

7
1

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

0
4

-M
IL

E 
C

R
EE

K
 B

A
N

K
 S

TA
B

IL
IZ

A
TI

O
N

3
4

0
,7

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
2

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

,3
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
,3

0
9

$
   

   
   

  
3

2
0

,4
1

6
$

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

1
JP

 C
O

N
SE

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 C
EN

TE
R

2
,4

0
4

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,3

2
0

,7
2

2
$

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
1

6
,2

4
5

$
   

   
   

   
4

,0
9

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
7

0
,0

8
7

)
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

0
,2

5
7

$
   

   
   

2
,1

5
3

,9
4

3
$

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

2
C

B
G

 M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
1

0
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

8
,3

6
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
7

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

3
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 I 

(f
kn

 E
L 

Tr
ai

l P
h

as
e 

I)
1

,1
0

0
,5

3
2

$
   

   
   

9
0

3
,7

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

7
6

,1
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

9
0

3
,7

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

7
6

,1
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

3
,7

6
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,0

8
3

,6
5

1
$

   
  

1
6

,8
8

1
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

4
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 II

 (
fk

a 
EL

 T
ra

il 
P

h
as

e 
II)

1
4

1
,0

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
1

,0
4

3
,2

3
8

$
   

   
  

2
0

5
,6

5
8

$
   

   
   

   
8

6
5

,0
9

1
$

   
   

   
   

2
1

6
,2

2
1

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(5
3

2
,0

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

5
4

9
,3

1
2

$
   

   
   

(4
0

8
,2

9
9

)
$

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

5
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 II

I (
fk

a 
EL

 T
ra

il 
P

h
as

e 
III

)
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

5
9

,5
3

4
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

6
,9

7
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
6

,9
7

6
$

   
   

   
  

(1
6

,9
7

6
)

$
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
2

6
FD

M
 P

O
N

D
 IM

P
R

O
V

EM
EN

TS
 &

 S
ED

IM
EN

T 
B

A
SI

N
8

5
4

,9
0

3
$

   
   

   
   

7
2

3
,9

8
9

$
   

   
   

   
1

3
2

,2
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

7
2

0
,8

6
9

$
   

   
   

   
1

3
6

,0
3

6
$

   
   

   
   

2
1

,9
1

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
0

0
,0

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

6
7

8
,8

1
8

$
   

   
   

1
7

6
,0

8
5

$
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

7
FD

M
 P

A
R

K
 IM

P
R

-S
H

EL
TE

R
/T

R
A

IL
S/

P
EN

IN
SU

LA
8

1
,1

7
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

9
,2

4
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

8
,3

0
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

3
,3

4
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
1

,6
4

7
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

,5
3

2
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

8
JP

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

-C
A

M
P

 A
R

EA
 #

2
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

4
1

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
3

3
6

,9
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
9

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

3
6

,9
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
8

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

5
,5

1
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
8

1
,2

6
1

$
   

   
   

2
8

,7
3

9
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

9
H

TT
 C

O
N

N
EC

TO
R

 T
O

 G
LW

 (
fk

a 
N

ea
l S

m
it

h
)

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
3

0
TM

 C
A

M
P

 C
R

EE
K

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
1

,0
9

7
,4

6
5

$
   

   
   

8
7

6
,6

6
5

$
   

   
   

   
1

9
4

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

8
0

5
,7

4
3

$
   

   
   

   
1

9
4

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,0
0

0
,4

5
6

$
   

  
9

7
,0

0
9

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

1
TM

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

&
 S

H
O

W
ER

 H
O

U
SE

1
1

9
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
7

,6
3

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
7

,5
5

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

2
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,2
0

5
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
5

6
,5

7
4

$
   

   
   

  
6

2
,4

2
6

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

2
YB

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

8
7

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
7

3
,4

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
0

,4
0

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

,5
1

8
$

   
   

   
  

4
6

,4
8

2
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

3
TR

A
IL

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

 A
LL

 A
R

EA
S

1
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

1
,2

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

3
,2

2
8

$
   

   
   

  
7

6
,7

7
2

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

4
JP

 E
N

TR
A

N
C

E 
R

EL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
5

8
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
7

9
,8

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
7

3
,0

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

2
7

9
,8

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
6

9
,7

4
3

$
   

   
   

   
  

3
,1

8
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
5

2
,7

6
8

$
   

   
   

2
3

3
,2

3
2

$
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
3

5
C

B
G

 W
O

O
SL

EY
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
-N

O
 S

A
LE

1
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
3

6
C

B
G

 M
EN

D
EN

H
A

LL
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
6

7
6

,2
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

9
,6

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

7
9

,6
6

7
$

   
   

   
(3

,4
0

0
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
3

7
C

X
T 

V
A

U
LT

 T
O

IL
ET

S
7

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
4

,1
3

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

4
,1

3
3

$
   

   
   

  
1

0
,8

6
7

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

8
C

B
G

 W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

D
ES

IG
N

1
0

4
,4

7
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
6

,4
7

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

,2
2

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

7
,2

2
1

$
   

   
   

  
3

7
,2

5
5

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

9
YB

 D
A

M
 R

EP
A

IR
S

7
9

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

7
5

,9
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

2
,5

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
7

7
5

,9
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

2
,5

0
7

$
   

   
   

   
9

,6
2

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8

9
8

,0
9

7
$

   
   

   
(1

0
1

,0
9

7
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
4

0
B

EA
V

ER
 C

R
EE

K
 L

A
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
9

3
,4

6
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9
3

,0
1

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

3
,4

6
9

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
4

2
R

O
A

D
 &

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T 
R

ES
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 A

LL
 A

R
EA

S
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
0

0
,2

3
7

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
0

0
,2

3
7

$
   

   
   

(2
3

7
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

3
C

A
M

P
 C

R
EE

K
-M

IL
LE

R
/R

IS
T 

LA
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
3

4
2

,1
9

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
4

2
,1

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

4
2

,1
9

7
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

4
C

B
G

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 

1
6

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

7
5

,5
8

8
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

5
,5

8
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
5

,5
8

8
$

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

5
YB

 A
LI

TZ
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
2

9
8

,9
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

8
,9

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
8

,9
5

0
$

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
4

6
C

B
G

 F
R

EE
LA

N
D

 L
A

N
D

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

2
0

4
,4

3
7

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

0
4

,4
3

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
0

4
,4

3
7

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

7
C

B
G

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 

6
0

 L
A

N
D

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

2
3

8
,6

8
7

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

4
2

,0
8

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
4

2
,0

8
7

$
   

   
   

(3
,4

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

8
, 2

0
1

5

P
C

W
LL

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

S 
O

F 
:

60



D
EC

EM
B

ER
JU

N
E

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L
A

C
TU

A
L

G
R

A
N

T
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L

SU
B

-
2

0
1

3
 B

O
N

D
2

0
1

5
 B

O
N

D
C

O
ST

S
C

O
ST

S
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

M
IS

C
EL

LA
N

EO
U

S
R

EV
EN

U
ES

 A
N

D
C

O
ST

S
B

A
LA

N
C

E

LE
D

G
ER

P
R

O
JE

C
T

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

D
O

N
A

TI
O

N
S

TO
 D

A
TE

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

8
, 2

0
1

5

P
C

W
LL

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

S 
O

F 
:

C
1

2
-6

2
4

8
C

B
G

 E
V

ER
LY

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

-N
O

 S
A

LE
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L 
O

N
LY

1
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

9
B

R
O

W
N

'S
 W

O
O

D
S 

TR
A

IL
H

EA
D

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

9
0

,7
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

8
,3

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

8
,6

7
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

3
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
3

,8
1

4
$

   
   

   
  

4
6

,8
8

6
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
5

0
YB

 P
R

EI
ST

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

1
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

,7
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8

,7
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
(7

,2
5

0
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

2
-9

9
9

9
M

IS
C

 M
IN

O
R

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

7
8

,6
3

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

,1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
,1

9
3

$
   

   
   

  
5

8
,4

4
0

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-9

9
9

9
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

U
P

P
LI

ES
2

9
1

,3
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

1
,3

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
1

,3
6

7
$

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

3
-6

2
5

1
O

V
ER

A
LL

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T
4

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

7
,7

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
7

,7
0

5
$

   
   

   
  

2
,2

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

2
EL

 L
O

D
G

E 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
3

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

3
TM

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
 T

R
A

IL
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

O
N

D
1

7
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

9
0

,3
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9
4

,3
5

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
0

,8
0

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

6
5

,1
5

4
$

   
   

   
9

,8
4

6
$

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

4
TM

 O
V

ER
LI

N
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
7

4
,2

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
4

,2
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

4
,2

5
7

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

5
M

A
LL

Y'
S 

ST
R

EA
M

B
A

N
K

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
0

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

6
P

C
W

LL
 P

U
B

LI
C

 A
W

A
R

EN
ES

S
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
,5

3
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
,5

3
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,5

3
4

)
$

   
   

   
   

C
1

3
-6

2
5

8
N

A
TU

R
A

L 
A

R
EA

 R
ES

TO
R

A
TI

O
N

S
2

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
1

,5
1

9
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

9
JP

 C
A

M
P

 S
TO

R
E

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
,2

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,2
0

0
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

3
-6

2
6

1
A

N
K

EN
Y 

H
TT

 E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
 D

SM
2

8
,5

6
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

9
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

,0
7

3
,5

6
4

$
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
8

2
,5

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
1

,6
9

1
,0

6
4

$
   

  
(7

6
2

,4
9

8
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

3
-6

2
6

2
EL

 J
.C

. W
H

IT
E 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

1
8

7
,6

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

7
9

,8
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
(9

2
,2

0
9

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
1

8
7

,6
8

5
$

   
   

   
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
1

3
-6

2
6

3
M

A
LL

Y'
S 

C
V

T 
&

 G
LW

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,1
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,1

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,1

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

C
1

3
-6

2
6

5
YB

 B
A

N
E 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

2
3

8
,3

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

3
8

,3
2

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
3

8
,3

2
5

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

4
-6

2
6

8
EL

 D
IK

ES
/D

R
ED

G
IN

G
/W

A
TE

R
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

2
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
5

3
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

3
,9

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

,4
5

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
6

,3
7

8
$

   
   

   
(2

7
1

,3
7

8
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

4
-6

2
6

9
FD

M
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
 C

LA
SS

R
O

O
M

1
1

,2
0

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
,9

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
3

,6
0

1
$

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

4
-6

2
7

0
EL

 C
O

V
ER

ED
 B

R
ID

G
E 

IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

4
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
5

7
,2

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

6
,9

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

,3
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

0
,2

7
0

$
   

   
   

  
(2

0
,2

7
0

)
$

   
   

   
 

C
1

4
-6

2
7

1
C

B
G

 K
A

L-
D

EN
 F

A
R

M
S 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

1
4

3
,9

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
4

3
,5

9
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

4
3

,5
9

0
$

   
   

   
3

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
1

4
-6

2
7

2
EL

 R
A

IN
 G

A
R

D
EN

S
1

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
0

,3
8

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

0
,3

8
6

$
   

   
   

  
(3

8
6

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
4

-6
2

7
4

C
O

N
SE

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

R
P

S
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

1
,6

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

9
8

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

LA
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
S

7
3

,8
0

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

3
,8

0
7

$
   

   
   

  

U
P

 A
N

K
EN

Y-
H

TT
 C

O
N

N
EC

TO
R

-A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

G
LW

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 T
O

 M
A

LL
Y'

S
3

3
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
3

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
3

,9
6

9
,6

8
0

$
   

   
2

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

8
,1

3
3

,0
1

2
$

   
   

  
4

,1
8

0
,9

6
8

$
   

   
  

8
,5

9
8

,1
9

4
$

   
   

  
2

,4
9

1
,1

0
4

$
   

   
  

6
,9

7
4

,0
1

3
$

   
   

   
 

(4
,3

8
1

,9
9

3
)

$
   

   
   

1
3

,6
8

1
,3

1
8

$
   

2
,4

8
8

,3
6

2
$

   
  

61


	March 2015 mtg attachmentsf.pdf
	February 2015 Revenue Epense Report.pdf
	Feb 2015
	March 2015 Revenue Report.pdf
	Feb 2015






